
 

 

Lancashire County Council 
 
Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Monday, 14th January, 2013 at 2.00 pm in Cabinet Room 'B' - County Hall, 
Preston  
 
Agenda 
 
Part 1 (Open to Press and Public) 
 
No. Item  
 
1. Apologies    

 
2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non Pecuniary 

Interests   
 

 Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and 
Non Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to 
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration 
on the Agenda. 

 

 
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 September 2012   (Pages 1 - 6) 

 To be confirmed, and signed by the chair.  
 
4. Accounts of Lancashire County Developments 

Limited 2011/12   
(Pages 7 - 32) 

 
5. Update on treasury management activity   (Pages 33 - 44) 

 
6. Internal Audit Service Progress Report   (Pages 45 - 58) 

 
7. External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 2011/12   (Pages 59 - 72) 

 
8. County Council and Pension Fund External Audit 

Fees 2012-13   
(Pages 73 - 78) 

 
9. Urgent Business    

 An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.  
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be given 
advance warning of any Member’s intention to raise a 
matter under this heading. 

 

 



10. Date of Next Meeting    

 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on 25 
March 2013 at 2.00pm at County Hall, Preston. 

 

 
 I M Fisher 

County Secretary and Solicitor 
 

County Hall 
Preston 
 
 

 

 



Lancashire County Council  
Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Monday 26 September 2012 
  
Minutes 
 
Present: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officers in attendance 
 
John Carr – head of fleet services - Lancashire County Commercial Group   
George Graham – deputy county treasurer   
Steve Freeman - accountancy and financial planning manager 
Ruth Lowry – head of internal audit  
Karen Murray - district auditor, Audit Commission  
Fiona Blatcher – senior audit manager, Audit Commission  
Roy Jones - assistant county secretary  
Cath Rawcliffe – committee support officer 
 
1. Apologies 
 
Apologies were presented on behalf of County Councillor C Grunshaw and M 
Parkinson. 
 
 
2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interests 
 
None were disclosed. 
 
 
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on  25 June 2012 
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2012 be confirmed 
and signed by the chair. 
 
 
4. Management of vehicle assets – Progress report 
 
John Carr, head of fleet services, presented an update on the actions taken in 
response to the internal audit report on the management of vehicle assets. 
 

County Councillors 
 

S Chapman (Chair) 
 

K Brown 
H Henshaw                                     
                     M Younis 
 

M  Welsh  
D Westley 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



The committee was informed that there were still outstanding issues which required 
further consideration by senior management before the Corporate Fleet 
Management Policy with associated guidance could be finalised. These related to 
the recovery of penalty charges from staff and vehicle specifications for council's 
fleet vehicles. 
 
The committee was also informed that the Internal Audit Service had been consulted 
on the revised policy. However, any future review of the management of vehicle 
assets would be dependent upon whether the fleet management service remained 
within the County Council or transferred to One Connect Ltd. 
  
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

 
5. Update on Treasury Management Activity  
 
A presentation was made to the committee by George Graham, deputy county 
treasurer on a review of the county council's treasury management activities during  
the current financial year to the end of August and included: 
 
- A review of the economic conditions during 2012/13  
- An assessment of the appropriateness of treasury strategy to the current and 
predicted economic environment 

- Borrowing to finance capital expenditure  
- Investment of cash balances 
- Comparison of current borrowing levels with 2012/13 prudential indicators. 
 

Details of the treasury management activities were presented at appendix A. 
 
In response to concerns raised by the members in respect of the council's current 
borrowing policy, the deputy county treasurer advised that the views of the council's 
consultants had been taken on board and that over time, the council would be 
reducing its exposure to short term debt.  However, for the time being, the current 
policy of keeping a higher proportion of borrowing at variable rates or short dated 
maturities was enabling the council to take advantage of the very low rates available 
on short term borrowing.  
 
Resolved: That the update on treasury management activities as shown at appendix 
A to the report now presented, be noted.  
 
 
6.  Internal Audit Service progress report 
 
Ruth Lowry, head of internal audit, presented an internal audit progress report for the 
six months to 30 September 2012.   
 
The report summarised the main issues emerging from the internal audit work 
completed to date. The report also set out the work performed against the annual 
audit plan for the year and the assurance assessment provided where work had 

Page 2



been completed, including work to assess progress against management's agreed 
action plans.  

The committee noted that 'limited assurance' had been given to the control 
framework in respect of the council's information governance and that it was 
proposed to appoint a new Senior Information Risk Officer to take responsibility for 
such matters.  Despite assurances that senior officer discussions on the new 
appointment were ongoing, the committee was concerned that the matter was not 
being given sufficient priority and requested that their concerns be conveyed to the 
Chief Executive.  In addition, the committee requested that a progress report on this 
matter and on the progress being made to reinvigorate the information governance 
control processes be presented to their next meeting on 14 January 2013.  

 
Discussion also took place on the service areas highlighted in the report that had 
since transferred to One Connect.  
 
Resolved:     That:  
 

i) The internal audit progress report for the six months to 30 
September 2012 as now presented be noted;    

 
ii) The Chief Executive be advised of the committee's concern at 

the delay in appointing a new Senior Risk Information Officer; 
 
iii) That an update report on the progress being made to appoint a 

Senior Risk Information Officer and to reinvigorate the 
information governance control processes, be presented to the 
next meeting of the committee on 14 January 2013.  

 
   
7. Review of Internal Audit 
 
Fiona Blatcher, senior audit manager presented a report on the Audit Commission's 
review of the Internal Audit Service.  
 
It was noted that the review had been undertaken at the request of the Head of 
Internal Audit.  
 
 It was reported that the council’s Internal Audit function met the standards for 
Internal Audit set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government and demonstrated many of the characteristics of best practice.  A small 
number of recommendations for improvement had been made for which an action 
plan had been agreed. 
 
The Chair thanked the Audit Commission for their detailed review of the service. 
 
Resolved:     That the report and the completed action plan be noted.  
 
 
8. Annual Governance Reports 2011-12 

Page 3



 
The committee considered the Audit Commission’s Annual Governance Report for 
the year ending 31 March 2012.  The report included the letter of representation 
which gave the Audit Commission specific management assurances regarding the 
accounts of the Lancashire County Council and Lancashire County Pension Fund.  
 
In commenting on the county council's accounts, Karen Murray, district auditor, 
informed the committee that she had not identified any material errors within the 
financial statements and those errors which had been identified and which were set 
out on page 5 of the report, had not affected the underlying financial position of the 
council. She also commented that this was a significant achievement on the part of 
the council's finance staff as it had been a particularly challenging year with the 
introduction of a number of changes.   
 
The report also included the Audit Commission's value for money conclusion which 
assessed whether the council had put in place satisfactory corporate arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The 
committee noted that overall the county council had demonstrated a strong financial 
performance and responded well to the demands placed on it whilst showing an 
overall improvement in performance across its services.   
 
In commenting on the Lancashire County Pension Fund account, Fiona Blatcher, 
senior audit manager, informed the committee that the audit work had identified a 
potential misclassification of accounting entries between the County Council and the 
Pension Fund and that the investment assets balance and investment liabilities 
balance had been understated by 0.7m.  A small number of amendments to the 
accompanying disclosure requirements were also highlighted. 

  
The deputy county treasurer assured the committee that these errors would be 
rectified.  
 
The committee was informed that the county treasurer had signed the letter of 
representation to the district auditor and members were asked to agree to the Chair 
of the committee signing the letter. 
 
Resolved: That: 
 

i) The Audit Commission Annual Governance Report covering the audit 
of the County Council and Lancashire County Pension Fund for year 
ended 31 March 2012 be noted. 

 
ii) The adjustments to the financial statements and disclosure 

requirements as set out in the report now presented be noted. 
 

iii) The Chair of the committee be authorised to sign the letter of 
representation tabled at the meeting. 

 
iv) The findings in relation to the value for money conclusion as set out in 

the report now presented be noted.  

Page 4



9. Approval of the Lancashire County Pension Fund’s Statement of 
Accounts 2011/12  
 

The committee was asked to approve the Lancashire County Pension Fund’s 
Statement of Accounts for 2011/12, as presented by George Graham, deputy county 
treasurer. 
 
Regulations governing the process and delegated authority from the county council 
required that the chair of the committee sign off the accounts once they were 
approved by the committee.  
 
The Statement of Accounts included the fund account and the statement of net 
assets and had been prepared in accordance with standard accounting practice as 
outlined in the notes to the accounts of the Pension Fund. 
 
The Statement had been signed by the treasurer to the Lancashire County Pension 
Fund to certify that it presented fairly the position of the Fund at 31 March 2012 and 
its income and expenditure for 2011/12.  
 
It was noted that the accounts of the Lancashire County Pension Fund, had been 
placed on deposit and had been available for public inspection between 2 July and 
27 July 2012. 
 
The committee raised concern with regard to the Fund's assets and recommended 
that the Fund should look to increase its membership to prevent its assets falling 
short of its liabilities. 
 
In response, the Deputy County Treasurer pointed out that the membership of the 
Fund was expected to increase following the implementation of the auto-enrolment 
scheme which required all employers to enrol their workers into a qualifying 
workplace pension scheme. These changes would apply to the County Council from 
1 January 2013.  
 
Discussion also took place on the equity holdings of the Fund. It was expected that 
the Fund would invest in an increased range of equities in the future. Members 
underlined the importance of taking social, environmental and ethical considerations 
into account when considering investment opportunities.  
 
Resolved: That the Lancashire County Pension Fund's Statement of Accounts for 
2011/12 be approved and signed by the chair of the committee.  
 
 
10. Approval of the County Council’s Statement of Accounts 2011/12  
 
The committee was asked to approve the county council's Statement of Accounts for 
2011/12, as presented by George Graham, deputy county treasurer.  
 
Regulations governing the process and delegated authority from the county council 
required the chair of the committee to sign off the accounts once they were approved 
by the committee.  

Page 5



The committee was informed that the Statement of Accounts had been prepared in 
accordance with the Accounting Code of Practice issued by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 
 
The statement had been compiled according to an agreed detailed programme of 
work to close the council’s accounts accurately and approve them within the 
deadline of 30 September. The statement had been signed by the county treasurer 
to certify that it presented fairly the income and expenditure for 2011/12 and the 
financial position of the county council as at 31 March 2012. 
 
The committee was taken through the main components and key issues of the 
statement, including the details of the status of the Statement of Accounts i.e. details 
of the council's spending and income in 2011/12 and how it compared with the 
budget; the main changes to the accounts for 2011/12 under IFRS, the financial 
statements including the movement in reserves statement, the comprehensive 
Income and expenditure statement, the balance sheet and cash flow statement and 
finally the auditor's report.  
 
The Lancashire County Pension Fund accounts were also included with the 
accounts as well as a separate item on the agenda.  
 
It was noted that the accounts of the county council had been placed on deposit and 
had been available for public inspection between 2 July and 27 July 2012. 
 
The committee also noted the total amount of expenditure on Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) projects. The committee expressed the hope that value for money 
would be achieved given the significant amount of expenditure involved. 
  
Resolved: That the Lancashire County Council Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 
be approved and signed by the chair of the committee. 

 
 

11. Urgent Business  
 

There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 
12. Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: It was noted that the next meeting of the committee would be held on 
Monday 14 January 2013 at 2.00 p.m. at the County Hall, Preston.   
 
 
 

 I M Fisher 
       County secretary and solicitor 
County Hall 
Preston 

Page 6



 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Meeting to be held on 14 January 2013 

Electoral Division affected: 
All 

 
 
Accounts of Lancashire County Developments Limited 2011/12 
(Appendix 'A' refers) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Beryl Rhodes, 01772 533603, Lancashire County Developments Limited 
beryl.rhodes@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report sets out the Financial Statements of Lancashire County Developments 
Limited for 2011/12. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The committee is requested to note the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts for 
Lancashire County Developments Limited. 
 

 
Background 
 
Lancashire County Developments Limited (LCDL) is the council’s economic 
development company and is focussed on delivery in line with the County Council's 
Economic Development Framework. 
 
On the 17th July 2003, the Full Council, on the recommendation of the Cabinet, 
resolved that the Lancashire County Developments Limited audited Statement of 
Accounts be reported to the Audit Committee for information.  
 
An overview of 2011/12 for the company by its Chair may be seen on pages 3 and 4 
of the Financial Statements for LCDL, which are attached at Appendix ‘A’.  Beryl 
Rhodes, LCDL Head of Commercial and Central Finance, will attend the meeting to 
respond to any questions.  
 
The following summarises the key points from the 2011-2012 financial year (ending 
on 31st March 2012)   
 
LCDL Group profit before taxation £4,251,122 for the period. The two major factors 
that gave rise to the profit were: 

 
1. A £6,000,000 gain arising from the disposal of fixed assets as a result of the 

fire at the Lancashire Business Park in Leyland.  The building was fully 
insured and our insurers have accepted liability. The accounts reflect the loss 
of the building and assume that the replacement will be built using the 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 
 

insurance monies, creating a building of significantly higher value than the 
one which was destroyed. This appears in the accounts as a £6m profit on 
disposal of fixed assets. 

 
2. A loss of £1,894,355 resulting from the reduction in the valuation of the 

property assets following a requirement by the Auditors to have the property 
portfolio externally valued: 

 
The revaluation of the property portfolio has given rise to a reduction of £17m in the 
Company's net asset.  The property portfolio is therefore now valued at £23million. 
 
The accounts were audited by Grant Thornton who are the company's external 
auditors. The full report and accounts was then submitted to the LCDL Audit 
Committee, who recommended the accounts to the Board for signature and filing at 
Companies House. The accounts have subsequently been approved for signature by 
the LCDL Board and filed at Companies House. 
 
Consultations 
 

N/A 
 
Advice 
 
N/A 
 
Implications: 
 
This item has the following Risk Management implications: 
 
N/A 
 
Implications:  Other 
 
This item has the following implications: 
 
N/A 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Ext 
 
Financial Statements  
working papers 
 

 
2011/12 

 
Beryl Rhodes, LCDL 
Tel : 01772 533603 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Meeting to be held on 14 January 2013 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
None 

 
Update on treasury management activity 
Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer  
 
Contact for further information: 
Mike Jensen, 01772 534742, County Treasurer's Department.  
mike.jensen@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The report set out in Appendix A is a review of the County Council's treasury 
management activities during the third quarter of the 2012/13 financial year. 
Treasury management activities are regulated by the CIPFA Code of Practice and it 
is best practice to review treasury management activities on a regular basis to 
ensure the effective governance and oversight of treasury management activities.   
 
This review outlines the treasury management activities of the County Council 
between September and November 2012 and includes: 
 

- A review of the economic conditions and the impact on the County Council's 
borrowing and lending activities. 

- Summaries of borrowing and investment transactions. 
- Monitoring of Prudential Indicators 
- An update on the investment in Landsbanki hf. 

 
Recommendation 
 
The Committee is asked to note the report on recent treasury management activities 
in Appendix 'A' and Appendix 'B' 
 

 
Background and Advice  
 
At the meeting of the Cabinet on 9 July 2009 it was agreed that in order to 
strengthen members’ oversight of the County Council’s treasury management 
activities, the Audit Committee should monitor and scrutinise regular updates on 
treasury management issues. Reports on treasury activity are discussed on a 
monthly basis with the County Treasurer and the content of these reports is used as 
a basis for this report to the Committee. The aim of the report is to inform members 
of the general economic environment surrounding treasury management activities 
and to set out the position on the borrowing and lending activities of the County 
Council.  
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



 
 

The quarterly report attached at Appendix 'A' is the review of treasury management 
activity for the third quarter of the 2012/13 financial year.  
 
Consultations 
 
Arlingclose Limited provides advice on treasury management. 
 
Implications:  
 
N/A 
 
Risk management 
 
The County Council’s treasury strategy and review set out a policy in respect of 
borrowing and lending activity and how risks associated with these activities are 
managed and monitored. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement 2012/13 
 
Investment Strategy and 
Approach. 

 
County Council 24 Feb 
2012 
 
Cabinet 5 Jan 2012 
 

 
Andy Ormerod County 
Treasurer's Dept X34740 
 
Andy Ormerod County 
Treasurer's Dept X34740 
 
 

 
 

Page 34



 

 

Treasury Management Activity Mid-Year Report 2012-13 
 

Background 

At the meeting of Cabinet on 9 July 2009, it was agreed that in order to strengthen 
members’ oversight of the County Council’s treasury management activities, the 
Audit Committee should receive regular updates on treasury management issues 
and that members of the Audit Committee should receive more detailed training in 
order to enable effective oversight of the County Council’s treasury management 
activities. Reports on treasury activity are discussed on a monthly basis with the 
County Treasurer and the content of these reports is used as a basis for this report 
to the Committee. 
 
This report considers treasury management activity over the first 5 months of the 
financial year. 
 

Economic Overview 
 
Despite some stronger economic growth data towards the end of 2012, consumers 
are yet to loosen their purse strings and businesses are still reticent to make long-
term investment decisions. The momentum in GDP growth is therefore unlikely to be 
sustained while uncertainty over the economic outlook persists. Consumer Price 
Inflation has fallen close to the Bank of England’s 2% target, although it is expected 
to be affected by volatility in energy and commodity prices throughout 2013. 
 
Having voted to increase quantitative easing by £50bn in July, the Bank’s Monetary 
Policy Committee is waiting to assess the effectiveness of the Funding for Lending 
Scheme that started in August. Further asset purchases remain a distinct possibility, 
although there is a developing consensus that quantitative easing is becoming less 
effective. 
 
The US Federal Reserve has responded to the slowdown in growth and employment 
with large scale asset purchases of $40bn a month until the outlook for the labour 
market improves substantially. The US public finance ‘fiscal cliff’ nevertheless 
remains a serious risk unless a political solution is reached soon. 
 
The Eurozone is making slow headway, with the European Stability Mechanism now 

operational, announcements on the Outright Monetary Transactions programme well 

received, and some progress being made towards banking union.  These have 

placated markets and curtailed some of the immediate risks to the stability of the 

monetary union. A sustainable solution to the Eurozone crisis is some way off 

though, as fiscal integration and mutualisation of Eurozone sovereign debt liabilities 

remain politically unpalatable. 

 

 

   

                       

Appendix A 

Page 35



  

 

Interest Rate Environment 
 
Short term interest rates continue at the very low levels since the Bank of England 
reduced base rate to 0.5% in March 2009. The chart below shows the downward 
pressure and movement of rates during the year. 
 
 

 
 
Current longer term PWLB rates are shown below. 
 

 
 

Page 36



  

 

During the summer uncertainty in world markets has increased the demand for UK 
government debt which puts downward pressure on UK interest rates. The effects of 
this can be seen in the fall of the PWLB rates in the period. The shape of the curve 
has remained constant with rates much lower at the short end. 
 
 
Outlook for Interest Rates 
 
Arlingclose Limited, the County Council’s treasury management adviser, are 
predicting that it could be 2016 before official UK interest rates rise. The US Federal 
Reserve has signalled it will keep interest rates "at exceptionally low levels" until at 
least 2015, and with the UK's safe haven status and minimal prospect of short-term 
rate rises, gilt yields are expected to remain near their current lows. 
 
Arlingclose central interest rate forecast – November 2012 

  
Bank 
Rate 

3 month 
LIBID 

12 month 
LIBID 

20-year 
gilt yield* 

Current 0.50 0.40 1.09 2.71 
Q4 2012 0.50 0.55 1.10 2.80 
Q1 2013 0.50 0.55 1.10 2.80 
Q2 2013 0.50 0.60 1.25 2.80 
Q3 2013 0.50 0.60 1.25 2.80 
Q4 2013 0.50 0.60 1.25 2.80 
H1 2014 0.50 0.70 1.40 2.90 
H2 2014 0.50 0.75 1.40 2.90 
H1 2015 0.50 0.75 1.40 3.00 
H2 2015 0.50 0.75 1.40 3.00 

     
* The Council can currently borrow from the PWLB at 0.80% above gilt yields 
 

Current Treasury Management Policy 

Historically, the Council's investment portfolio, like that of many local authorities, had 
consisted almost entirely of fixed term deposits with very short maturity periods, and  
borrowing was provided entirely through PWLB loans with long dated maturities 
This served the Authority well during a decade of consistent economic growth, low 
inflation and a stable economic environment where the County Council could 
consistently invest balances at a higher return than the cost of borrowing.  However 
in 2007 the collapse of the banking system and subsequent world recession ended 
this benign financial environment. 
 

The current borrowing policy of keeping a higher proportion of borrowing at variable 

rates or short dated maturities is enabling the County Council to take advantage of 

the very low rates available on short term borrowing. In addition, given that the 

current pressure on rates is still downwards, it positions the County Council to take 

advantage of any further falls in longer term rates in the near future. 

 

The current investment policy of accessing high credit quality institutions through 

bond investments as opposed to placing fixed term deposits directly with banks 

Page 37



  

 

continues to be the County Council's preferred strategy given the continued difficult 

credit environment. 

The County Council identifies sub-portfolios into which the overall investment 
portfolio is divided, broadly reflecting the County Council's overall cash position and 
profile of when balances are required.  From this position it is possible to provide 
geographical and financial sector diversity, whilst increasing liquidity and credit 
quality management. Inflation and interest rate risk can also be managed and there 
is a possibility of increased investment returns if suitable opportunities arise.  
 

The sub-portfolios include: 
 

• Bond liquidity book made up of short dated gilt edged securities, 
commercial bonds, treasury bills, short date sovereign (UK government) 
and supra-national bonds (i.e. bonds from institutes such as the EBRD).  
All these instruments can be bought or sold at very short notice.  This sub 
portfolio is for the management of day to day cash flows.  

 

• Bank liquidity book made up of call accounts, short dated bank deposits, 
bank certificates of deposit, money market funds, reverse repurchase 
agreements, again to manage daily cash flows.   

 

• Core Maturity matching book for medium term and less volatile 
reserves. These instruments can be matched to the expected cash flows 
pertaining to reserves which will be held over a longer period.  This will 
compromise gilt edged securities, Sovereign and Sovereign Guaranteed 
Bonds, Supra national bonds, Local Authorities bonds/debt and Bond 
funds. Possibly longer term bank deposits with institutions of very high 
credit quality. A significant proportion of this portfolio will still be highly 
liquid, principally to afford the ability to react to changing circumstances. 

 

• Core cash book for longer term investments. This can be used to provide 
a higher yield on cash which the Authority can lend for longer periods – 
investments would include structured deposit/certificates of deposit/Notes 
short/medium term maturities with capital protection.   

 

• Specific situation book – index linked gilts or bonds, structured deposits 
and certificates of deposit. This portfolio will be tailored to specific 
requirements as they arise, examples might include PFI reserves. 

   
A table outlining the types of financial instruments to be held within these portfolios 
and how they are accounted for is included at Appendix B. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



  

 

Investment Activity 

The table below shows investment activity during September to November 2012 
 

Bank Deposits 
 

       Call          Fixed 
       

Structured 
       

 Total 

     £m         £m       £m 
 

      £m 
Balance 1st 
September 

16.51 129.60 124.18 270.29 

Maturities   (476.74) - - (476.74) 
New Investments 477.14 - - 477.14 

 
Balance 30th 
November 16.91 129.60 

 
124.18 270.69 

 
 

   Bonds 
     Local    

Authority    
Bonds 

       UK Govt  
      Gilts 

   Corporate &    
Supra-

nationals      Total 
 

        £m          £m                £m 
 

    £m 
Balance 1st 
September 37.91 178.90 86.39 303.20 
Maturities - (126.05) (148.31) (274.36) 
New Investments - 95.77 193.43 289.20 
 
Balance 30th 
November 37.91 148.62 131.51 318.04 
 
Overall the level of investments has remained fairly static with some realignment 
made between the UK gilt and corporate bond portfolios. 
 
 
Borrowing Activity 
 
Current market conditions continue to enable the County Council to take advantage 
of short term market borrowing. The table below shows the borrowing activity which 
has taken place between September and the end of November 2012. The total is net 
of transferred debt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



  

 

PWLB 
Fixed 
Rate 

PWLB 
Variable 
Rate 

Long 
Term 
Market 
Loan 

Other 
Locals  

Police, 
Fire and 

Lancashire 
District 
Councils TOTAL 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

      Balance 1st 

September   168.30    125.75  
     

52.32   279.50      94.65   720.52  

Maturities - - -  ( 98.10)     
     

(85.39)  
   

(183.49) 
New 
Borrowing       - - 

       - 
    113.04       78.62  191.66 

Balance 
30th 
November 

          
168.30    125.75  

     
52.32    294.44       87.58    728.69 

 
The total borrowing level changes daily depending on the County Council's cash flow 
position, but overall there has been no significant change in the total level of 
borrowing during the period. 
 
Prudential Indicators 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the County 
Council to have regard to the prudential code and to set prudential indicators to 
ensure the County Council's capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable. 
 
A comparison of the actual position at 31st August 2012 compared to the prudential 
indicators set in the treasury management strategy for 2012/13 is set out below. 
 
 
Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 2012/13  30

th
 Nov 

Actual  
 £M £M 

1. Adoption of CIPFA TM Code of Practice 

 

2. Authorised limit for external debt - A prudent estimate of debt, 
which reflects the Authority’s capital expenditure plans and allows 
sufficient headroom for unusual cash movements. 

ADOPTED 

Borrowing 791 729 

Other long-term liabilities(PFI schemes) 525 419 

TOTAL 1316 1148 

3. Operational boundary for external debt - A prudent estimate of 
debt, but no provision for unusual cash movements.  It represents 
the estimated maximum external debt arising as a consequence of 
the County Council's current plans. 

  

Borrowing 741 729 

Page 40



  

 

Other long-term liabilities 475 419 

TOTAL 1216 1148 

   

4. Maturity structure of debt  

 

 Lower Limit % Upper Limit % Actual % 

Under 12 months  75 52.43 

12 months and within 2 years  75 - 

2 years and within 5 years  75 - 

5 years and within 10 years  75 21.15 

10 years and above 25 100 26.42 

 
The graph below shows the level of total debt for each day of the past calendar year 
compared with the prudential indicator operational and authorised boundaries. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



  

 

 
Budget Monitoring Position  
 
 

 Cash Limit Est Actual Variance 
 £m £m £m 
    
MRP 25.996 25.996  - 
Interest Paid 20.720 18.000 (2.720) 
Interest Received (11.309) (18.589) (7.280) 
Grants (0.403) (0.403) - 
    
 35.004 25.004   (10.000) 
 
Current Projections indicate a £10m under- spend against the financing charges 
budget.  
This position can change taking account both of ongoing performance and also 
market movements as is kept under regular review and an updated forecast is 
provided to the County Treasurer on a monthly basis. 
 
Icelandic Banks 
 
At the time the Icelandic banks collapsed in October 2008, the County Council had 
an investment of £10.0m with Landsbanki. Under the treasury management strategy 
in operation at that time, the County Council's share of the deposit was £6.436m.  
 
The County Council was one of many UK and Dutch Local Authorities with such 
deposits, all of whom were granted priority creditor status by the Icelandic Supreme 
Court at a hearing in Reykjavik on 14th and 15th of September 2011. The Winding Up 
Board announced on 9 March 2012 that it anticipated recoveries in the Landsbanki 
administration would exceed the book value of recognised priority claims by around 
ISK 121bn, taking into account the sale of its holding in Iceland Foods.  Estimated 
recoveries are some 9% higher than the value of priority claims, and it is therefore 
now considered likely that UK local authorities will recover 100% of their deposits, 
subject to potential future exchange rate fluctuations. 
 
The winding up board made its first distribution on 7th December 2011, the second 
distribution on 25th May 2012 and the 3rd distribution on 9th October 2012. 
Approximately 48% of the total claim has now been repaid. The table below shows 
the combined amount of the distributions and the amount outstanding. 
 
CLAIM              £ 
Principal     6,435,808.29 
Interest          93,384.46 
Total      6,529,192.75 
 
Received     3,098,465.33 
 
Claim outstanding    3,430,727.42 
 

Page 42



          
 

 
Portfolio Instruments Initial Valuation/ 

Measurement 
Subsequent 
Valuation 
Method 

Value Fluctuations Classification & Remarks 

Core Cash Book Fixed Deposit, 
Structured Deposits 

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Amortised Costs Comprehensive 
Income & 
Expenditure 
Statement 

Loans and Receivables. 
Long Term defined as greater than 1yr to maturity. 
 

Bank Liquidity 
Book 

Term or Structured  
Deposits  

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Amortised Costs Comprehensive 
Income & 
Expenditure 
Statement 

Loans and Receivables. 
Deposits less than 1 yr to maturity 

Bank Liquidity 
Book 

Fixed Deposits Call 
Accounts 

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Amortised Costs Comprehensive 
Income & 
Expenditure 
Statement 

Loans and Receivables. 
These are cash and cash equivalents defined as 
having less than 3 months to maturity. 

Bank Liquidity 
Book  

Money Market 
Funds / Bond 
Funds 

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Fair Value AFS Reserve until 
disposal, then 
recycled through 
income and 
expenditure 
account. 

Available For Sale Reserve holds change in value 
(paper gain or loss) until the value of the asset is 
realised. 

Core Maturity 
Matching Book 

Gilts, Index Linked 
Gilts, Supra 
national and 
Corporate Bonds 

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Fair Value AFS Reserve until 
disposal, then 
recycled through 
income and 
expenditure 
account. 

Available For Sale Reserve holds change in value 
(paper gain or loss) until the value of the asset is 
realised. 

Core Maturity 
Matching Book 

Local Authority 
Bonds 

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Fair Value AFS Reserve until 
disposal, then 
recycled through 
income and 
expenditure 
account. 

Available For Sale Reserve holds change in value 
(paper gain or loss) until the value of the asset is 
realised. 

Bond Liquidity 
Book 

Gilts, Index Linked 
Gilts, Supra 
national and 
Corporate Bonds 

Fair Value plus 
transaction costs 

Fair Value Income and 
Expenditure 
Account. 

The active portfolio is held for trading and therefore 
realised and unrealised gains and losses are taken 
straight to Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure Account.  

Appendix B 
 

P
age 43



          
 

 

P
age 44



 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Meeting to be held on 14 January 2013 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
All 

 
Internal Audit Service Progress Report 
(Appendices A and B refer.) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Ruth Lowry, (01772) 534898 
 

Executive Summary 

In the context of fulfilling its responsibility to consider periodic reports of internal 
audit activity and outcomes, the committee is asked to consider the progress report 
for the period to 14 December 2012 (Appendices A and B).   

Recommendation 

The Audit and Governance Committee is asked to consider the Internal Audit 
Service progress report for the period to 14 December 2012. 

 
Background and advice 
 
This report sets out for the Committee the internal audit work performed, the key issues 
emerging from it and management's responses to it.  
 
Appendix A to this report summarises the main issues emerging from the internal audit 
work completed to date. Appendix B sets out the work performed against the annual 
audit plan for the year and the assurance assessment provided where work has been 
completed, including our work to assess progress against management's agreed action 
plans. The table in this appendix also indicates where the audit plan has been 
amended. 
 
Internal audit assurance  

Internal audit assurance is stated in the following terms: 

Full assurance: there is a sound system of internal control which is designed to 
meet the service objectives and controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: there is a generally sound system of internal control, 
designed to meet the service objectives, and controls are generally being applied 
consistently. However some weakness in the design and/ or inconsistent 
application of controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk.  

Limited assurance: weaknesses in the design and/ or inconsistent application of 
controls put the achievement of the service objectives at risk. 

No assurance: weaknesses in control and/ or consistent non-compliance with 
controls could result/ have resulted in failure to achieve the service objectives. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



 

 

Consultations 

Not applicable. 

Implications 

Not applicable. 

Risk management 

This report supports the Audit and Governance Committee in undertaking its role, which 
includes providing independent oversight of the adequacy of the council's governance, 
risk management and internal control framework. 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

List of Background Papers 

Paper Date Contact 
Not applicable.   

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate:  Not applicable. 

Page 46



Internal Audit Service progress against plan 2012/13 
Audit and Governance Committee meeting 14 January 2013 

 Appendix A: 1

Appendix A 

Matters arising from internal audit work completed during 
the period 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This report highlights key issues that the Audit and Governance Committee 
should be aware of in fulfilling its role of providing independent oversight of the 
adequacy of the council's governance, risk management and internal control 
framework. It summarises the work undertaken during the year to 14 December 
2012 by the council's Internal Audit Service under the internal audit plan for 
2012/13.  

1.2 A full table of all the audit work currently planned for 2012/13 is included at 
Appendix B, setting out brief notes of the progress made on each project and 
the outcomes where work has been completed. It also clarifies where planned 
assignments have been deferred or removed from the plan, and where 
additional work has been included in the programme for the year. 

1.3 The Internal Audit Service continues to follow our risk-based audit methodology, 
using a risk and control evaluation-based approach ('RACE-based') combined 
with compliance testing of key controls, computer assisted audit techniques 
('CAATs') and follow-up work. 

2 Key issues 

Corporate arrangements in relation to information governance 

2.1 The council's information governance arrangements remain substantially 
unchanged since the last meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee in 
September 2012. The arrangements are still subject to further development, 
and assurance cannot yet be provided over the corporate controls in place. 

2.2 Assistance is being provided by the Internal Audit Service to develop the 
documentation required by the council as we begin to work more closely with 
the NHS and take on responsibility for public health. 

Legislative compliance 

2.3 The Deputy County Secretary and Solicitor presented a report to the Audit 
Committee in June 2012 addressing assurance over the council's compliance 
with legislation, in which he stated that "a high degree of assurance can be 
provided" over the council's "compliance with legislation focussed specifically on 
local government, from a governance perspective (as opposed to service 
specific) legislation". However he also stated that "a lesser degree of assurance 
can be provided in relation to legislation that is local government-specific but 
relates to functions".  

2.4 We have undertaken specific compliance testing and have provided substantial 
assurance over the Registrar's Service's compliance with the legislation 
governing the solemnisation of marriages. We have almost completed our work 
on the Trading Standards Service.  

2.5 We have also undertaken work on the role of the independent reviewing officers 
(IROs) who are required to assess the adequacy of social care provision for 

Page 47



Internal Audit Service progress against plan 2012/13 
Audit and Governance Committee meeting 14 January 2013 

 Appendix A: 2

children looked after and child protection cases. Our work has not focussed 
solely on the IROs' compliance with relevant statutory guidance but it should be 
noted that the IROs are not fully compliant with the statutory guidance relating 
to their work, and that a high court judgement was made in June 2012 against 
the council and one of its IROs. 

Direct payments 

2.6 We have completed our detailed work on direct payments within both ACS and 
CYP, and are continuing to consider with management the issues that will be 
raised as elements of these services transfer to the council's new Benefits 
Service that will be operated by One Connect Ltd. 

Page 48



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

Corporate controls    
     

Governance     

 Support to management, including input to the 

council's annual governance statement. 

 Work is continuing with the Assistant County Secretary to consider the council's governance 

arrangements. 

Not 

applicable 

 Corporate performance monitoring. RACE-based review. Work has not yet begun.  

 Implementation of member's decisions and 

decision-tracking. 

RACE-based review. Since work relating to consideration of the legal implications of decisions before they are proposed 

and made is still being finalised, this work has now been deferred to 2013/14. 

 

 Staff acceptance of gifts and hospitality. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance.  A draft report has been issued to management.  

 Staff disclosures of business interests and their use 

by management. 

RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance.  This work has been combined with that above relating to staff acceptance of gifts and hospitality. Limited 

 Members' allowances and expenses, and 

declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality. 

Follow-up review. We have reviewed the action taken since we completed our audit work in October 2011. Action 

has been taken as agreed, although further work is planned to train new elected members in 2013 

and to use plain English in the guidance.  

Not 

applicable 

Working in strategic partnership     

 Funds flow between LCC and One Connect Ltd. RACE-based review. We have completed our work and issued a final report; there are effective controls over the flow 

of funds between the county council and One Connect Ltd.  

Substantial 

Legislative compliance     

 Consideration of the legal implications of decisions. RACE-based review. This work is almost complete and a draft report is being prepared.  

 Testing within service areas of their compliance 

with service-specific legislation: 

   

 Compliance testing of the Registration Service 

operated within the Adult and Community 

Services Directorate. 

Compliance testing. Our work has focussed on marriages solemnised under the Superintendant Registrar's certificate, 

and we have concluded that the Registration Service operates a robust system of control to 

effectively identify and interpret the legislation affecting it.  

Full 

 Compliance testing of the Trading Standards 

Service within the Environment Directorate. 

Compliance testing. A report is being drafted and discussed with management.  

Information governance     

 Overall corporate arrangements. RACE-based re-review. Information governance arrangements are still subject to further development and assurance 

cannot yet be provided over the controls in place. 

Nil 

 Overall corporate arrangements for data sharing 

with partners, supported by work in directorates. 

RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. A summary of our findings was reported in September 2012. Limited 

 Follow-up: Overall corporate arrangements for 

data sharing with partners. 

Follow-up review. As already reported, this area will be re-reviewed once the council's overall corporate information 

governance arrangements have been resolved. This work will therefore be deferred to 2013/14. 

 

     

Cross-service controls    
     

Business continuity and emergency planning     

 Overall corporate arrangements.  RACE-based review. A draft report is being discussed with management.  

Partnerships/ accountable body     

 The council's accountable body role. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. Changes are being made to a number of processes, with related organisational changes, within the 

County Treasurer's Directorate that will strengthen the council's arrangements supporting its 

accountable body role. However these arrangements are not yet complete and it is too soon to 

undertake a re-review.  

 

Transition from children's services to adult services.     

 Transition from children's services to adult 

services. 

RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. As already reported, the arrangements to support young people as they move from children's 

services to receiving services as young adults have been re-designed. This audit is therefore now 

scheduled to start at the end of the audit year. 

 

Transport     

 Accessible transport arrangements including 

internal re-charges. 

RACE-based re-review – some restricted audit work 

gave no assurance in 2011/12. 

This work is on-going.  

 Safeguarding children's transport. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. This work is on-going and is being undertaken in conjunction with the work on accessible transport 

under the new arrangements implemented within the Integrated Transport Unit. 

 

P
age 49



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 2 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

Common controls    
     

Financial controls     

 Accounts payable. Compliance testing (split start and end of year). This work has begun and will be completed in March 2013.  

 Accounts receivable. Compliance testing (split start and end of year). This work has begun and will be completed early in 2013.  

 Budgetary monitoring and control and scheme of 

delegation. 

RACE-based review. This work is scheduled for late in the year as the new arrangements for budget-holders under the 

latest release of the Oracle financial system settle down. 

 

 Cash and banking. Compliance testing. This work is scheduled to begin early in 2013.  

 Capital accounting. RACE-based review, to tie into work on directorates. As already reported, this work may be affected by the second phase of development of the Oracle 

financial system which will introduce changes to controls over the council's fixed assets. It is linked 

with specific projects in each of the directorates, and the results of each piece of work will be 

considered as a whole as well as individually. 

 

 Expenses. Compliance & CAATs testing (split start and end of 

year). 

Testing has been completed and the findings are being discussed with Human Resources 

management. 

 

 General ledger. Compliance testing. This work is scheduled to take place at the end of the year.  

 Payroll. Compliance & CAATs testing (split start and end of 

year). 

Testing is scheduled to begin early in 2013.  

 Payroll codings to the general ledger Compliance & CAATs testing (split start and end of 

year). 

The Internal Audit Service is supporting on-going data cleansing work and will undertake 

compliance testing later in the audit year. 

 

 Payroll controls in LCCG. Compliance testing. This work is on-going.  

 Follow-up: payroll controls in LCCG. Compliance testing and follow-up work. This work will follow completion of the work noted above, and will therefore be deferred to 

2013/14. 

 

 Treasury management. RACE-based review. We have begun work to follow up the action taken in response to the Audit Commission's report 

on this area. 

 

 VAT. Compliance testing. Our work is complete and we have concluded that there are adequate controls, operating 

effectively to identify, account for and recover VAT on the council's purchases. 
Substantial 

 Oracle release 12 - ongoing implementation and 

further work on the controls established in phase 1 

and phase 2. 

RACE-based review. Our work on this project is on-going and includes work on the new fixed assets and procurement 

modules. 

Not 

applicable 

HR controls     

 Connect2HRP (previously 'Ask HR') RACE-based review. Our assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy of the controls designed to resolve HR and 

payroll queries is complete. There are examples of good practice in a number of areas including: 

the measures taken to achieve a consistent level of advice to customers; the management of 

resources to deal with calls and emails promptly, particularly at peak times; the identification, 

investigation and escalation of common payroll and HR issues; and the regular reporting of 

performance data to key stakeholders. 

Substantial 

 Hierarchies in the Oracle HR/ payroll system. Compliance testing. We are providing support to the project currently working to resolve the hierarchies in the HR/ 

payroll system, including reviewing the project testing programme. We will undertake any further 

compliance testing of this at the end of the year. 

 

 Leave system Compliance testing. This work has begun and will be progressed in January 2013.  

 Long term sickness absence RACE-based review. This work is on-going.  

 Oracle HR/ payroll system. RACE-based review. This work is scheduled to begin in January 2013.  

 ICT controls     

 Data centre. RACE-based re-review – limited assurance in 2011/12. Work by management to address the issues raised during 2011/12 is on-going. Although it is not 

yet appropriate to re-review this area in full, we are working to understand the current position. 

 

 Help desk. RACE-based review. This work will take place early in 2013.  

 Implementation of Lancashire Electronic Content 

System (LECS) and identity management. 

Advice and assistance, including attendance at 

corporate groups. 

LECS has been superseded by the council's plans to introduce a 'Resolution Centre' which is likely 

to be used to manage all the council's data and our support is not currently required on this 

project. However the council is considering the procurement and implementation of an identity 

management system. The Internal Audit Service has supported the preparation of the business 

case for this but it is unlikely that any further audit input will be required. 

Not 

applicable 

P
age 50



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 3 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Network access. RACE-based review. This work is continuing.  

 Password standards. Compliance testing A draft report is being prepared and discussed within the team.  

 Security of mobile devices. RACE-based review. This work will take place early in 2013.  

 Web applications. RACE-based review. Further discussion with management indicates that this work would be closely related to our work 

on web usage and has therefore been removed from the audit plan.  

 

 Web content management. RACE-based review. Work is scheduled to begin in January 2013.  

 Web usage. RACE-based re-review – nil assurance 2011/12. New software has been implemented that resolves the issues we raised in 2011/12. Our work has 

been restricted to the corporate control over use of the internet rather than its use by operational 

staff, but we can now provide substantial assurance over these corporate controls. 

Substantial 

 Vulnerability management. RACE-based re-review – limited assurance in 2011/12. The ICT Services team is working towards accreditation to international standard ISO/IE27001, but 

does not plan to achieve this before 2013/14. It is therefore too early to re-review this area, but 

we are aware that progress is being made. 

 

 Database security. RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. Databases are administered by a skilled workforce supported by strong problem, incident and 

change management processes and the fundamental elements of an effective organisational 

structure are in place. 

Annual penetration testing is carried out on selected services and infrastructure and we 

understand that supported databases are covered by a disaster recovery contract. 

However there are weaknesses in the logical access controls applied to the key databases including 

Oracle accounts still enabled with default passwords and excessive access permissions. No defined 

access standards are in place to establish regular and systematic review of who has access, what 

they can access and how secure that access is. We have found no evidence that OCL has 

considered the risks and security requirements of the council's key databases within its 

operational framework or begun to address security standards and weaknesses accordingly. OCL 

will seek accreditation to ISO/IEC27001 during 2013/14 and user access management will be 

addressed then. 

Audit trails and logging are necessary to monitor compliance with security requirements and 

possible security breaches but, although auditing is active on each database, the function is not 

being used to monitor database security. 

Limited 

 Follow-up: Database security. Follow-up review – limited assurance in 2012/13. Since the original review has only recently been completed and OCL have plans in place to amend 

control processes during 2013/14, this work will be deferred to next year's audit plan. 

 

Procurement     

 Procurement Centre of Excellence – purchasing 

and tendering control compliance testing 

(including follow-up of previous audit work). 

RACE-based review and follow-up work. Work on purchasing and tendering has been combined into a single project that will be undertaken 

late in the audit year, following work throughout the year on procurement specifically relating to 

the Highways Service. 

 

Estate management     

 Property asset inventory control and usage – 

reactive repairs and planned maintenance. 

RACE-based review. This work is almost complete and a report is being drafted for discussion with management.  

 Follow-up: Property asset inventory control and 

usage – high level controls. 

Follow-up review – substantial assurance in 2011/12. We have followed up the work undertaken last year on the corporate premises management 

framework at the same time as the work reported above on reactive repairs to property and the 

planned maintenance programme. 

 

 Follow-up: Premises management framework. Follow-up review – substantial assurance in 2011/12. Since our original work has only recently been finalised, this follow-up work will be deferred to 

2013/14. 

 

     

Service specific controls    
     

Adult and Community Services (ACS)     

 Support to management.  We have continued to support management in considering the procurement of certain historic 

social care contracts. 

 

 Capital accounting (related to other central audit 

work and work in the directorates). 

RACE-based review. It was reported in September 2012 that this work may be affected by the second phase of 

development of the Oracle financial system, which will introduce changes to controls over the 

council's fixed assets: this work will now be deferred to 2013/14. 

 

P
age 51



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 4 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Care decision-making panels. RACE-based review. A representative of the Internal Audit Service is supporting the working group and further audit 

work will begin later in 2012/13. 

 

 Care navigation system; individual selection of 

personal care providers. 

RACE-based review. This is closely related to our work on preferred providers of non-residential care. Since 

management action is still on-going in response to this audit, a further audit of the care navigation 

system will be more appropriate during 2013/14. 

 

 Data quality for performance management (related 

to central audit work on performance 

management). 

RACE-based review. Our work has been finalised and focussed specifically on monitoring the performance of the 

Library Service. A performance assessment regime has been established for the Library Service 

consisting of a balanced scorecard to determine service priorities and strategic measures, local 

performance indicators to measure the achievement of service objectives, and benchmarking 

against similar authorities. Performance monitoring is discussed at both strategic and local levels 

and there is a suite of performance measures, aligned to the Library Service business plan.  

Substantial 

 Direct payments. RACE-based review. Before a direct payment arrangement can be established it is important to ensure that service 

users are capable of managing direct payments themselves, or else have the mental capacity to 

consent to a representative managing the direct payment on their behalf. However in some cases 

there was no evidence available that this assessment had been made.  

Direct payments to service users are determined by an initial assessment of need, which is then 

regularly reviewed. Although these reviews take place, the assessments are not adequately 

approved. 

Service users may decide that, even if they have the capacity, they do not wish to manage their 

own payments and bank account and they therefore engage a third party's services to manage a 

bank account for them. Although we found no evidence of mismanagement in such arrangements, 

the council relationship to such service providers is not sufficiently clear. 

Once payments are being made to service users regular checks are necessary, in accordance with a 

risk assessment, to ensure that the funds provided are being used appropriately. However the risk 

model used to establish the frequency of checks does not take account of the size of the payments 

being made and therefore misses a key element of the risk involved. 

In practice these financial reviews are not undertaken in accordance with the risk assessment and 

related assessment of the necessary frequency of review, and overdue reviews are not adequately 

monitored. 

Limited 

 Health and safety of lone workers. RACE-based review – previously limited assurance. As previously reported, this work is being undertaken in conjunction with assignments on lone 

workers in each of the directorates, and work has begun. 

 

 Establishment visits (cash management). Compliance testing – completion of prior year's work. We have completed a number of unannounced visits to libraries, museums and county 

information centres to review cash handling procedures, focussing on the recording, secure 

holding and timely banking of cash received. Some establishments do not yet have documented 

procedures, and where procedural guidance is in place it is inconsistent although nonetheless 

effective.  

Limited 

 Hospital discharge model and social care support. RACE-based review. After discussion with management, this work will be deferred into 2013/14.  

 ISSIS replacement: advice and support re controls 

over configuration, security and implementation of 

replacement system. 

Advice and support. As previously reported, the Internal Audit Service is represented on the project board and work 

has begun. Input is being coordinated with work on the CYP project board. 

Not 

applicable 

 Management of case referrals: compliance testing. Compliance testing. This work is in progress.  

 Non residential care system (NRCS): compliance 

testing. 

Compliance testing. We examined 25 new packages of domiciliary care approved during the period from May 2011 to 

April 2012 to confirm the operation of each of the key controls.  

In addition, we verified that, for five cases in the sample, the payments were correctly reflected in 

the Oracle Accounts Payable system, and that five NRCS income transactions were correctly 

recorded in the Oracle Accounts Receivable system. 

Substantial 

 Payment and monitoring system (PAMS): 

compliance testing. 

Compliance testing. We examined 25 new packages of domiciliary care approved during the period from May 2011 to 

April 2012 to confirm the operation of each of the key controls.  

In addition, we verified that, for five cases in the sample, the payments were correctly reflected in 

the Oracle Accounts Payable system. 

Substantial 

P
age 52



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 5 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Preferred provider scheme. RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. We have reviewed the preferred provider schemes for non-residential care providers across client 

service groups, focusing on the initial accreditation process and ongoing performance monitoring, 

including the removal of providers from the lists. 

At the time providers were initially accredited as 'preferred', the scheme was a useful way to 

improve quality standards by ensuring that providers were appropriately managed and staffed to 

support delivery of a service which complied with national minimum care standards. However a 

high proportion of providers were automatically preferred and the accreditation process was 

variable, depending upon the service user groups supported by providers. 

The standard domiciliary monitoring framework has not been consistently applied through 

contract monitoring over the past 12-18 months, largely as a result of the high number of 

providers currently on the preferred provider lists, and it is not therefore clear that all are meeting 

the required standards. 

Limited 

 Resource allocation within the model that allocates 

individual budgets. 

RACE-based review. This work will take place later in the year.  

 Follow-up: Fair access to care criteria (FACS). Follow-up review – substantial assurance in 2011/12. As already reported, this work will take place later in the year. It will be coordinated with the work 

above on the allocation of individual budgets. 

 

 Follow-up: Prepayment card pilot Follow-up review – substantial assurance in 2011/12. This work will be undertaken late in the year.  

 Follow-up: Preferred provider scheme. Follow-up review. The work on preferred providers was finalised in October 2012, and a re-review will be scheduled 

for 2013/14. 

 

 Follow-up: Vulnerable adults' domicilary services 

and day centres. 

Follow-up review – previously substantial assurance. Good progress has been made by Domiciliary Services in implementing recommendations from the 

previous review of this area in August 2011. 

Domiciliary Service managers have undertaken ad-hoc finance and medication compliance audits, 

and work is on-going to agree and implement standardised documentation and protocols. 

Medication and finance policies have been reviewed and updated to reflect the additional controls 

required.  

Not 

applicable 

 Care grants and crisis loans RACE-based review. Additional work has been added to the audit plan to address the design and implementation of a 

local service for the replacement of the Social Fund currently provided by the Department for 

Work and Pensions. 

We will support the Project Board and provide assurance over key system developments including 

the identification and prioritisation of claimants, safeguards against error, fraud and abuse, and 

the integration of the service with other areas of discretionary financial assistance. 

 

Public health     

 Operational review in the shadow year (in two-

phases). 

RACE-based review. We are working to understand the services and related contracts and costs that will be transferred 

to the county council and this work will continue going throughout the year. 

 

CYP       

 Support to management. Support to management. We have continued to assist management in their response to an official complaint relating to a 

child with disabilities. 

 

 Capital grant funding/ capital accounting. RACE-based review. It was reported in September 2012 that this work may be affected by the second phase of 

development of the Oracle financial system, which will introduce changes to controls over the 

council's fixed assets. This work will now be deferred to 2013/14. 

 

 Emergency payments to families. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. We reported in November 2011 that controls were not operating effectively and had been applied 

inconsistently, and local judgement of appropriate expenditure was inconsistent across the 

county. Most of the actions agreed by management to address these issues remain incomplete. 

Limited 

 Financial, operational and safeguarding procedures 

within children's residential homes. 

RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. We have now provided substantial assurance over the systems and procedures in place for the 

management and administration of children's residential establishments, in particular their 

management in accordance with the Adoption, Children's Homes and Fostering National Minimum 

Standards and Regulations that are published by the Department for Education. 

Substantial 

 

 

 

    

P
age 53



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 6 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Grant fund monitoring arrangements. RACE-based review. This work will be deferred until 2013/14. It will still be appropriate to assess the directorate's grant 

fund monitoring arrangements, but this work has been superseded during the current year by the 

need to provide assurance over the grant funding provided by the Department for Communities 

and Local Government under its Troubled Families programme. 

 

 Health and safety of lone workers. RACE-based review. As previously reported, this work is being undertaken in conjunction with assignments on lone 

workers in each of the directorates, and work has begun.  

 

 Troubled Families programme RACE-based review. The Troubled Families programme was introduced earlier in the year and our work will be focussed 

on the directorate's operational response to this programme and its related payment-by-results 

scheme. 

 

 ISSIS replacement process: advice and support re 

controls over configuration, security and 

implementation of the replacement system. 

Advice and support re controls over configuration, 

security and implementation of replacement system. 

The Internal Audit Service is represented on the project board and work is on-going. Input is being 

coordinated with work on the ACS project board. 

 

 Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. The IROs' role is to review children's social care cases and ensure that appropriate action is being 

taken for the well-being of the children concerned. Our work focussed on the risks that the IROs' 

caseloads and resources are not effectively managed, that the IROs do not comply with statutory 

requirements, and that their working practices are inefficient. 

IROs address the cases of children looked after, and child protection cases; management oversight 

of the two groups of IRO staff is variable. 

The IROs raise recommendations for action in relation to children's social care, and those 

recommendations that are high priority are 'starred'. However these starred recommendations are 

not fully logged and the log is not adequately monitored to ensure that actions are taken as 

required.  

The adverse findings of the High Court in June 2012 clearly have a bearing on any assessment of 

the risks and controls relating to the responsibilities of the IROs, since these provide a very clear 

insight into the cases of two boys who "suffered irreparable harm" over 12 years. The court found 

that the boys' legally established human rights had been breached. 

The directorate is aware of the issues around the work of the IROs and is acting to strengthen 

these arrangements. We will follow up this action during 2013/14. 

Limited 

 Management of children's social care referrals. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. We plan to undertake a full re-review of this area before the end of the year and, as reported in 

September 2012 the two key issues have been addressed. 

 

 Partnership working with the NHS to support 

children with mental health needs. 

RACE-based review. This work has now recently started.  

 Performance management framework. RACE-based review. This work has not yet started.  

 Provision for children with disabilities (direct 

payments).  

RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. Direct payments to service users are determined by an initial assessment of need within the 

directorate, which should be approved as appropriate and then regularly reviewed. However in 

some cases the appropriate approval has not been given (for example where a package of care 

exceeds a financial threshold). Reviews of agreed care packages do not take place in all cases or 

are delayed because the ISSIS system does not have the facility to capture the relevant dates and 

prompt the process.  

Once payments are being made to service users the process is controlled by ACS. Regular checks 

are necessary, in accordance with a risk assessment, to ensure that the funds provided are being 

used appropriately, but the risk model used to establish the frequency of checks does not take 

account of the size of the payments being made and therefore misses a key element of the risk 

involved. In practice these financial reviews are not undertaken in accordance with the risk 

assessment and related assessment of the necessary frequency of review, and overdue reviews 

are not adequately monitored. 

At the time of our audit work 66 finance review visits were overdue out of 336 cases. These 

included three high risk cases and four cases where the finance visit was overdue by over 300 days. 

Limited 

 Pupil Referral Units and excluded pupil 

interventions. 

Race-based review. This work has not yet started and may slip into 2013/14.  

P
age 54



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 7 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 The Safeguarding Children's Board budget. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. Work on this review has recently begun.  

 School budget formula and pupil forecasting. RACE-based review. Work on this review has begun and is scheduled to take place around the school census dates.  

 Residential homes: review of the key risks of short 

stay breaks including costing. 

RACE-based review. We have only recently completed our earlier work on the financial, operational and safeguarding 

procedures within children's residential homes and provided substantial assurance over these. 

Work specifically on short stay breaks in residential homes has therefore been removed from our 

audit plan for the year. 

 

 Young Persons Learning Agency (YPLA) grant 

certification. 

Compliance testing – grant certification. This work has begun and is in progress.  

 Follow-up of the Ofsted action plan and actions 

arising from the peer review. 

Follow-up review of Ofsted's report. Most of the actions arising from Ofsted's review of the council's children's services are being 

monitored by the Head of Safeguarding Inspection and Audit. However we have now completed 

our testing of the directorate's social care case file reviews.  

The Laming Report recommended that senior managers should randomly inspect case files but, in 

general, very few teams are completing and reporting the required number of case file audits and 

this is not effectively monitored by management. Peer review has not been implemented and 

there is no process to identify and share the issues arising from the audits that are undertaken. 

Limited 

 Follow-up: Financial and performance monitoring 

of schools. 

Follow-up review – substantial assurance in 2011/12. Actions were due by September but may not be evidenced until the spring term.  

 Follow-up: Personnel file documentation. Follow-up review.  This work has not yet been completed.  

 Follow-up: SureStart children's centres. Follow-up review – limited assurance in 2011/12. Actions were due by September but may not be evidenced until the spring term.  

Schools and sixth forms     

 Support to LCC management.  The Internal Audit Service is working with other members of the County Treasurer's team to assess 

the council's responsibilities in relation to schools, the related assurance requirements, and the 

impact of the move of some schools to academy status. 

 

 School reviews. Whole-school reviews. Work has been completed as follows: 

School type Number 

of audits 

Level of assurance 

Full Substantial Limited None 

High school 2 0 2 0 0 

Primary school 13 0 8 4 1 

Nursery school 3 0 2 1 0 

Total 18 0 12 5 1 
 

 

 Follow-up of school reviews. Follow-up review. Visits to schools to follow up the action plans agreed last year will take place during the spring 

term. 

 

 Thematic review - income. Thematic review An Audit Matters newsletter was issued to all schools in September 2012. 

A number of schools do not bank cash on a regular basis, in some cases for a period of several 

months, and occasionally cash is taken home by staff in the evening. 

At a number of schools arrears owed by pupils are not actively monitored and arrears reach 

significant levels. 

There is often a lack of segregation of duties within the cash collection and banking process and, in 

some schools such segregation of duties may not be practical. However In such cases other 

controls should be applied, such as checks by an independent senior member of staff to ensure 

that the amounts banked agree to the supporting documentation. 

 

 Thematic review - special schools. Thematic review  This work is due to begin in 2013/14.  

 Thematic review - payroll services. Thematic review  

 Thematic review - schools with public sports 

facilities 

Thematic review  

 Follow-up of thematic reviews: procurement, 

unofficial school funds and data protection. 

Follow up all 2011/12 thematic reviews. This work has begun.  

 

 

    

P
age 55



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 8 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Premises management framework - schools and 

sixth forms 

RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. In 2011 Queen's Counsel's opinion was sought by the council to clarify the position regarding 

responsibility for management of the county's schools' premises. This stated that "LCC is at risk of 

liability arising out of injury caused by the condition of the premises in any of its schools." Where 

the council owns the premises and/ or employs the school's staff its responsibility is clear, but this 

responsibility arguably extends to other schools as well as community and voluntary-aided schools.  

The council has established a premises management framework to enable headteachers to ensure 

the safety of school premises, although schools have the option of using other arrangements 

instead. The council relies on individual schools to self-certify their adherence to its premises 

management framework annually. 

However the mechanism to enforce or verify schools' compliance with this or any other framework 

is not comprehensive and there is no evidence that more than half of all schools have 

arrangements in place to ensure that premises are compliant with health and safety requirements. 

For the forthcoming financial year all schools will be asked to demonstrate how they intend to 

achieve and maintain compliance and the Environment Directorate will undertake a programme of 

school visits to validate this. 

Limited 

Environment     

 Support to management.  We have discussed the integrated assurance plan/ risk management arrangements involved in the 

Pennine Reach project. 

 

 Analysis of overtime and additional payments. Data analysis to support management. This work has been added to the plan for the year to support management in understanding 

overtime and other additional payments made to groups of staff now within the directorate. We 

have extracted and analysed the available data and this is now being considered by management. 

 

 Budgetary control within the directorate. RACE-based review. This work is scheduled for late in the year as the new arrangements for budget-holders under the 

latest release of the Oracle financial system settle down. 

 

 Capital programme (of the combined Environment 

Directorate and former Property Group). 

RACE-based review. As already reported this work is linked with other work on the common financial systems and may 

be affected by the second phase of development of the Oracle financial system. 

 

 Carbon reduction commitment. Compliance testing. Audit fieldwork is complete and a report is being discussed with management.  

 Concessionary travel. RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. In general, adequate and effective local systems and procedures have been established and 

applied in relation to NoWcards, the reimbursement of operators and invoicing Travel Concession 

Authorities (TCAs).  

However the national scheme to identify the use of lost or stolen NoWcards is not yet fully 

enabled and the risk therefore remains that cards lost or stolen cards may be misused. 

Concessionary passengers report discrepancies with their tickets/ journeys to the council but these 

are negligible. Overcharges are correctly deducted from the operators' reimbursement and 

operators are monitored a statement of improvement. 

To obtain assurance that their periodic claims for reimbursement are correct operators are required 

to obtain and provide certificates of accuracy but, although five of fourteen certificates for 

2010/11 were received late and one certificate was inaccurate no payments to operators were 

suspended, which places the county council at risk. 

Limited 

 Concessionary travel. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. As the review above has only recently been completed, this re-review will be deferred into 

2013/14. 

 

 Corporate manslaughter - highways 

responsibilities. 

RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. This work has been combined with work on highways asset management, and a report is being 

drafted. 

 

 Flood risk management. RACE-based review. This work is nearing completion.  

 Health and safety of lone workers. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. As previously reported, this work is being undertaken in conjunction with assignments on lone 

workers in each of the directorates, and work has begun. 

 

 Highways asset management. RACE-based review. This work has been combined with work on highways responsibilities in relation to corporate 

manslaughter, and a report is being drafted. 

 

 Highways purchasing and use of subcontractors. RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. This work is being discussed with management in the Environment Directorate, LCCG and the 

Procurement Centre of Excellence, although an outline of our findings was reported to the Audit 

Committee in June 2012. 

Limited 

P
age 56



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 9 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Highways purchasing and use of subcontractors. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. This work will be deferred into 2013/14 whilst the issues raised during 2011/12 are addressed by 

the Procurement Centre of Excellence. 

 

 Lancashire Highways Service performance. RACE-based review. The scope of this work has been discussed with management but it is too soon after the 

establishment of the Service for this work to be helpful.  

 

 PFI waste project - Area East waste transportation. RACE-based review. Terms of reference have been drafted for this work and it will take place after the re-review of 

budget forecasting has been completed. 

 

 PFI waste project - strategic and budget 

forecasting. 

RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. This work has recently started.  

 Winter highways information management system. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance 

(although the previous opinion used different terms). 

This work is under way.  

 Follow-up: Closed landfill sites. Follow-up review – previously substantial assurance. As previously reported, all the agreed actions have been completed by management.  

 Follow-up: Compliance with relevant legislation 

and LCC regulations. 

Follow-up review. As noted above, work is on-going in relation to the Trading Standards service's compliance with 

relevant legislation. 

 

 Follow-up: Development control s278. Follow-up review. This work is complete and the action plan has been largely completed as agreed. Not 

applicable 

 Grant audit: Citizen Rail. Compliance testing – grant certification. This work in on-going; we are actively involved in supporting the preparation of an appropriate 

claim. 

 

 Grant audit: CIVINET. Compliance testing – grant certification. One audit is complete, but we will also be required to certify the closure of this funding stream.  

 Grant audit: ENVIREO. Compliance testing – grant certification. This work is not due yet.  

 Grant audit: Growth Point. Compliance testing – grant certification. This work has been completed.  

 Grant audit: Interreg IVB SusStations (NWE). Compliance testing – grant certification. This work is on-going.  

 Grant audit: Local Transport Capital Compliance testing – grant certification. We have certified the Department for Transport's grant to the council relating to integrated 

transport and capital maintenance of highways. This work was unplanned but has been completed 

for the end of September 2012. 

 

Lancashire County Commercial Group     

 Support to management.  We have continued to provide ad hoc advice.  

 Bus service operators grant. Compliance testing – grant certification. As already reported, the first claim has been certified, but another claim will be made later in the 

year. 

 

 Compliance with relevant legislation and LCC 

regulations: Working Time Directive. 

Compliance testing. The work planned in relation to compliance with the European Working Time Directive has been 

postponed at the request of the Director of Human Resource and Payroll Service. 

 

 Catering income procedures in schools. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. Our fieldwork is almost complete.  

 Food stock and consumption, ordering, provision, 

invoicing controls. 

RACE-based review. This work is being undertaken in conjunction with that on catering income procedures and is 

almost complete.  

 

 Health and safety of lone workers. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. As previously reported, this work is being undertaken in conjunction with assignments on lone 

workers in each of the directorates, and work has begun. 

 

 Vehicle asset inventory control and usage. RACE-based re-review – previously limited assurance. This work has not yet begun but it is unlikely to be helpful whilst discussions are on-going 

regarding the transfer of the service to BT plc. 

 

Customer service centre     

 Care Connect Service. RACE-based review. This work has been deferred from the current year, but we are undertaking work on case referral 

management within ACS.  

 

 Emergency Duty Team. Support to management. This work has been added to the plan at management's request; we have provided support to 

management to understand the structure and costs of the Emergency Duty Team in readiness for 

its transfer into Care Connect. 

 

 Pension helpdesk. RACE-based review. This work has been deferred into 2013/14 by agreement with the County Treasurer.  

Economic development     

 Enterprise zones. RACE-based review. After discussion with management, this work has been removed from the audit plan for 2012/13.  

 Growing Places outcomes (the grant element of 

the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership). 

RACE-based review. This work has not yet begun.  

 Revised Rosebud Fund. RACE-based review. After discussion with management, this work has been removed from the audit plan.  

     

P
age 57



Lancashire County Council internal audit plan 2012/13: progress as at 14 December 2012 

Page 10 of 10 

Control Audit review Audit scope Comments Assurance 
     

 Superfast broadband project, involving the 

assistant chief executive, LCDL's grant specialist 

team and the economic development team. 

RACE-based review. We have worked with the specialist grants team to consider what procedures are required to 

support the council's claims for grant funding, and will meet the Director of Economic 

Development shortly to discuss his assurance needs. 

 

 Grant audit: Regenerate's Statement of Grant 

Usage. 

Compliance testing – grant certification. This work is no longer required.  

 Grant audit: Intensive Business Start-up. Compliance testing – grant certification. We have completed work begun in 2011/12 to certify this grant funding claim.  
     

Counter fraud service    
     

Counter fraud     

 Bribery Act. RACE-based review. We are considering the scope of this work, and work has not yet begun.  

 Cash handling. Compliance testing directed by data analysis. This audit has been replaced by testing of expenses, and by testing of cash handling in county 

establishments. Our review of expenses has highlighted a number of issues and we are discussing 

these with Human Resources. 

 

 School income testing. Compliance testing directed by data analysis. Work for the current year has not yet begun.  

 Prevention of bribery - streetworks. RACE-based review – completion of prior year's work. Work has almost been completed and a report is being drafted.  

 Follow-up: Prevention of bribery - streetworks. Follow-up review – subject to assurance level of 

original work. 

Since the original work has been subject to some delay, follow-up will not be appropriate during 

the current year. 

 

National Fraud Initiative     

 National Fraud Initiative testing.  We have begun work to prepare data for submission.  

     

Reactive work     

 Responsive work to support management. Individual investigations. We are working to support management with a number of on-going investigations and disciplinary 

procedures. 

 

     

Risk management    
     

 Preparation of the corporate risk register.  Work on this will be coordinated with the preparation of the audit plan for 2013/14.  

 Other support to management.  This work will take place in the second half of the year.  
     

 
 

P
age 58



 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Meeting to be held on 14 January 2013 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
All 

 
External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 2011/12  
Appendix A refers. 
 
Contact for further information: 
Fiona Blatcher, 0161 234 6393, Grant Thornton,  
fiona.c.blatcher@uk.gt.com 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The report sets out the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter for 2011/12. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The committee are asked to consider the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter for 
2011/12, as set out at Appendix 'A'. 
 

 
Background and Advice  
 
The external auditor's Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 summarises for the county 
council the findings of the annual audit for 2011/12. The audit is made up of two 
elements as follows: 
 

- the audit of financial statements; 
- the assessment of arrangements to achieve value for money in the use of 

resources 
 
The letter has been considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2 October 2012 and is 
available to view via the county council's website.  
 
The Council's external auditor, Karen Murray, will attend the meeting to present the 
Annual Audit Letter and respond to questions. 
 
Consultations 
 
The report was agreed with the council’s chief executive and county treasurer.  
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 

Agenda Item 7

Page 59



 
 

 
No significant risks have been identified in relation to the proposals contained within 
this report. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper 
 

Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 

Annual governance report 
 

September 2012 
 

Fiona Blatcher, 0161 234 
6393, Grant Thornton,  
fiona.c.blatcher@uk.gt.com 
 
 

 
Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 
 

Page 60



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

1
 A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e

tt
e

r
L

a
n

c
a
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 

A
u

d
it

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Page 61



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

2
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
K

e
y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.3

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.4

O
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
4

W
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l.
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
4

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

5

C
lo

s
in

g
 r

e
m

a
rk

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

9

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 G

lo
s

s
a

ry
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.1
0

   

Page 62



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

3
 K

e
y

 m
e

s
s

a
g

e
s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 m
y
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

u
d

it
. 
M

y
 a

u
d

it
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 t

w
o

 e
le

m
e
n

ts
: 

!
 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
; 

a
n

d
!

 
m

y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
y
o

u
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
, 

is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 I
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 a
u

d
it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 2
7

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

rr
o

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 A
ll 

e
rr

o
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ly

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 l
e

d
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e
w

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 O
n

e
 

C
o

n
n

e
c
t 

L
im

it
e

d
, 

(O
C

L
),

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 r

e
-s

tr
u

c
tu

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
a

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 t
e

a
m

 

h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
te

x
t,

 t
h
e

 

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 b
ri

n
g

in
g

 o
n

to
 t

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 w
a

s
te

 P
F

I 
a

s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 a
s
s
e

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
, 

is
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 (

V
F

M
) 

I 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 2

7
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1

/1
2

, 
e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 w

h
ils

t 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 i
ts

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

It
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

p
la

c
e
d

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

h
e

a
d

. 

G
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
re

a
s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 i
n

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 b

o
th

 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h

 O
C

L
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 w
a

s
te

 P
F

I 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
t.

  

Page 63



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

4
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
a
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
m

e
a
n

s
 b

y
 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

it
s
 s

te
w

a
rd

s
h

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 f

u
n

d
s
.

O
v

e
ra

ll
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

I 
is

s
u

e
d

 a
n

 a
u

d
it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 2

7
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

 

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 w

a
s
 a

g
a

in
 g

o
o

d
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
. 

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

rr
o

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 
A

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
la

ti
v
e

ly
 m

in
o

r 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
u

ra
c
y
, 

c
la

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 n

o
te

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
ll 

e
rr

o
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h
e

 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 f

o
r.

 N
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 o

r 
g
e

n
e

ra
l 
c
o

u
n

ty
 f

u
n

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
r 

th
e

 

u
n

d
e

rl
y
in

g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
. 

W
e

a
k

n
e

s
s

e
s

 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

In
 m

y
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

, 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 2

6
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
2

, 
I 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
m

is
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
. 

I 
a
m

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

rr
o

r 
a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 e

it
h

e
r 

s
e

t 
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
n

o
n

-m
a

te
ri

a
l 
e

rr
o

r 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 s

e
ts

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 

B
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 i
n
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 f
u

lly
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ile

 t
h

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 c

a
s
h

 b
a

la
n

c
e

. 
T

h
e

 u
n

-r
e

c
o
n

c
ile

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 a
t 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 s
to

o
d

 a
t 

£
1

.2
m

. 
A

n
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ile

 t
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

. 
 

Page 64



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

5
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y

I 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 i
s
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 a
n

d
 u

s
in

g
 i
ts

 m
o

n
e
y
, 
ti

m
e
 a

n
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r.

 
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
. 
I 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 y
o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 s

p
e
c
if

ie
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 (

V
F

M
) 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

I 
a

s
s
e

s
s
 y

o
u

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
tw

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
. 

M
y
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 

M
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 t
w

o
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
b

e
lo

w
..

 

T
a

b
le

 1
: 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 k

e
y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
 

 

C
ri

te
ri

a
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 -
 T

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 t

o
 s

e
c

u
re

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

.

F
o

c
u

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

: 
 

T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
ri

s
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 a

 s
ta

b
le

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 

th
a

t 
e

n
a

b
le

s
 i
t 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

re
s
e

e
a

b
le

 f
u

tu
re

. 

K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
 

A
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fa
c
e

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 l
o

c
a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

is
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
, 

w
it
h

 a
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t

o
 2

0
1
3

/1
4

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 s

a
v
e

 £
1

7
9

m
 

o
v
e

r 
th

a
t 

p
e

ri
o

d
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
fo

llo
w

e
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
w

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h

 b
e

g
a
n

 s
o

m
e

 y
e

a
rs

 b
e

fo
re

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 m

o
re

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
h

ils
t 

s
ti
ll 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ir

e
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 r

a
d

ic
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 a

ro
u

n
d

 b
a

c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
im

e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
n

 t
o

 b
o

th
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

la
n
s
 w

h
ils

t 
a

ls
o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t
o

, 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r,
 n

e
w

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
. 

A
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
in

g
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

la
n
s
 w

e
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

o
f 

£
7

.5
m

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
, 

(a
n

d
 s

ti
ll 

a
re

),
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

Page 65



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

6
 

C
ri

te
ri

a
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 -
 T

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 t

o
 s

e
c

u
re

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

.

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
: 

!
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 (
£

1
0

m
);

  

!
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 b

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a

rs
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 t

o
 o

ff
-s

e
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 (

£
1

0
m

);
 a

n
d

  

!
 

a
g

re
e

d
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 £
7

.4
m

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

T
h

is
 s

tr
o

n
g

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
ta

k
e

n
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
o
n

e
-o

ff
 g

a
in

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 b

o
n

d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

, 
h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
o

n
e

-o
ff

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 r

e
s
p

it
e

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 d
a
y
 c

a
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
.

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
£

5
9

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

o
v
e

d
 i
n

to
 a

 n
e

w
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
re

s
e

rv
e

 a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 

to
 f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
la

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
ti
ll 

fa
c
e

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o

s
t 

a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 f

u
lly

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
n

d
 i
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
fu

n
d

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 f

ro
m

 £
4

1
.9

m
 a

t 
1

/4
/1

1
 t

o
 £

3
6

.5
m

 a
t 

3
1

/3
/1

2
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
is

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

s
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n

c
y
 t

o
 o

ff
-s

e
t 

fu
tu

re
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

it
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 e

x
p

o
s
u

re
 o

f 
it
s
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

n
d

in
g

s
. 

In
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
 i
ts

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
b

e
n
e

fi
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
o
n

e
-o

ff
 g

a
in

s
 o

f 
£

5
5

.7
m

 a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 b

o
n

d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

. 
T

h
e

 g
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 t

re
a

s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r:

 

!
 

th
e

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
 i
s
 m

u
c
h

 c
le

a
re

r 
a

b
o

u
t 

it
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 i
ts

 p
o

lic
y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
; 

!
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
b

le
 t

o
 e

x
p

la
in

 a
n

d
 j
u

s
ti
fy

 i
ts

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 b
o
rr

o
w

in
g

 i
s
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

m
u

c
h

 t
ig

h
te

r 
lim

it
s
; 

!
 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

ly
 T

re
a

s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
re

a
s
u

re
r 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
o

rm
a

lis
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
, 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
; 

!
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 i
s
 c

le
a

re
r 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
m

a
rk

e
t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 o

w
n

 p
o

rt
fo

lio
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

le
a

re
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

lim
it
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
; 

!
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
s
; 

a
n
d

 

!
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 i
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
o

rk
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 g
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

!
 

a
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 T

re
a

s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
IT

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

th
e

 r
is

k
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

rt
fo

lio
s
; 

Page 66



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

7
 

C
ri

te
ri

a
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 -
 T

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 t

o
 s

e
c

u
re

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

.

!
 

u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
 o

f 
tr

e
a

s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 n
o

te
s
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
u

rs
u

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
tr

e
a

s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 

w
o

rk
lo

a
d

/c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 

C
ri

te
ri

a
. 

S
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 -

 T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

in
g

 h
o

w
 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s

e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
. 

F
o

c
u

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

:

T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 i
ts

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

ig
h

te
r 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 b

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 c

o
s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
.

F
in

d
in

g
s

:

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 w
e

ll 
a

g
a

in
s
t 
it
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

O
v
e

r 
8

0
%

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 h
a

v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r,
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 m

e
t,

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
e
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
h

a
v
e

 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 r

o
a

d
 c

a
s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 o

f 
2
2

6
 (

2
5

.9
%

) 
a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
*-

 C
 

g
ra

d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 l
e
v
e
l 
b
y
 4

%
 (

5
6
%

 t
o
 6

0
.1

%
).

 

T
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 O
C

L
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 o
n

 i
ts

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

In
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

te
rm

s
, 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 

to
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 a

s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
. 

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

fi
g

u
re

 a
g

re
e

d
 o

f 
£

3
7

.3
m

 c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 
s
e

c
o

n
d

e
d

 s
ta

ff
 o

f 
£

4
1

.5
m

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 b

ill
e

d
 t

o
 O

C
L

. 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

£
1

1
.9

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
id

 f
o
r 

a
g

re
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 H
R

/p
a

y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 l
e

d
g

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

A
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

£
0

.5
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
id

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 L

a
n

c
a

s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 O

C
L

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 b

e
h

a
lf
 a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 O

C
L

 t
o

 b
e

 £
3

.2
m

. 
 

O
C

L
 a

re
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

g
re

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 
A

s
 w

it
h

 a
n

y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
th

e
re

 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 r
o

b
u

s
tl
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

w
o

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
a

t 
a

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 

le
v
e

l 
to

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

ri
s
e

. 
B

a
s
e

lin
e

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

w
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
n
 a

 

m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
h

o
w

 a
n

y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

e
a

c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

. 
G

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 O

C
L

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 c

lo
s
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
is

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 o

ff
s
e

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 w
a

s
te

 

Page 67



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

8
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

 D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 i
t 

b
e

c
a

m
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 a
p

p
a

re
n

t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
  

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 e
n

v
is

a
g

e
d

. 
S

in
c
e

 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r,
 G

lo
b

a
l 
R

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
s
 L

a
n

c
a

s
h

ir
e

 L
td

, 
(G

R
L

L
),

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 A
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
n

te
n
d

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
is

e
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
 f

ro
m

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll,

 t
h

e
re

b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll 

b
u
d

g
e

t.
 T

h
e

re
 r

e
m

a
in

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

g
o

in
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 G
R

L
L

, 
h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

 m
o

re
 s

ta
b

le
 f

o
o

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

n
d

 a
re

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
ri

s
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

  

Page 68



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

9
 C

lo
s

in
g

 r
e

m
a

rk
s

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
is

 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 T

re
a

s
u

re
r.

 .
I 

w
ill

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

th
is

 l
e
tt

e
r 

a
t 

th
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

o
n

 1
1
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 f

in
d
in

g
s
, 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

y
e

a
r.

 

 

R
e

p
o

rt
D

a
te

 I
s

s
u

e
d

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 –
 L

a
n

c
a

s
h
ir

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 –
 L

a
n

c
a

s
h
ir

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
. 
I 

w
is

h
 t

o
 t

h
a

n
k
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
ta

ff
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

 

a
u

d
it
. 

   K
a
re

n
 M

u
rr

a
y
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
d

it
o

r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

   

Page 69



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

1
0

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 G

lo
s
s

a
ry

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
o
w

 l
o

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

th
in

g
s
, 

in
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
w

a
y
, 

fo
r 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

in
 a

 t
im

e
ly

, 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
, 

o
p

e
n

, 
h

o
n

e
s
t 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 m

a
n

n
e

r.
 

It
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

s
 t

h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
, 
c
u

lt
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s
, 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

re
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
to

, 
e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 
le

a
d

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
p
o

rt
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

c
o

m
p

lie
s
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 c
o

d
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

h
o

w
 i
t 

h
a

s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
it
s
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r,
 a

n
d

 o
n

 a
n

y
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
.

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

O
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

I 
m

u
s
t 

g
iv

e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 

!
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

in
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
; 

a
n

d
  

!
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

u
le

s
. 

  

O
p

in
io

n

If
 I

 a
g

re
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

, 
I 

is
s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

. 
I 

is
s
u

e
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 i
f:

 

!
 

I 
fi
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

o
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

; 
o

r 

!
 

I 
c
a

n
n

o
t 

c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
. 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 h

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 

If
 I

 f
in

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 h

a
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

I 
is

s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 c
o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

If
 I

 f
in

d
 t

h
a

t 
it
 d

id
 n

o
t,

 I
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 

 

Page 70



  If
 y

o
u

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

r 
in

 a
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

lis
h

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 c
a

ll:
  

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 7

0
7

0
 

©
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 2

0
1

2
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 P

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 T
e

a
m

. 

Im
a

g
e

 c
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t 
©

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 n

o
n

-e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

rs
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 

fo
r 

th
e

 s
o

le
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

c
c
e

p
t 

n
o

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

: 

!
 

a
n

y
 d

ir
e

c
to

r/
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
; 

o
r 

 

!
 

a
n

y
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
. 

 

            

 
 

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v

.u
k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
2

 

Page 71



Page 72



 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Meeting to be held on 14 January 2013 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
All 

 
County Council and Pension Fund External Audit Fees 2012-13 
(Appendix A refers) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Fiona Blatcher, 0161 234 6393, Grant Thornton,  
fiona.c.blatcher@uk.gt.com 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides the proposed fees for the external audit of Lancashire County 
Council and Lancashire Pension Fund for 2012/13. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The committee is asked to note the external auditor's fee letters for the audit of the 
County Council and the Pension Fund for the year ending 31st March 2013. 
 
 

 
Background and Advice  
 
Attached at Appendix A is the fees letter covering the external auditor’s planned 
audit work for 2012/13.  The letter sets out the main elements of the proposed audit 
work for 2012/13 and where appropriate, highlights any specific risks which will be 
reviewed as part of this work. 
 
The fees for the main audit of the County Council and the pension fund have been 
set at the scale fees set by the Audit Commission. These represent a reduction of 
40% compared to the audit fees for 2011/12.   
 
The audit planning process for 2012/13, including the risk assessment, will continue 
as the year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our 
work progresses. 
 
Consultations 
 
The fees have been agreed with the County Treasurer 
 
Implications:  
 
N/A 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



 
 

Risk management 
 
N/A 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
Audit Commission’s 
statement of responsibilities 
of auditors and of audited 
bodies 
 
Audit Commission Act 1998 
 
Codes of Audit Practice 
 
Audit Commission Work 
programme and scale of 
fees 2012/13 

 
 

 
Fiona Blatcher 
Grant Thornton 
0161 234 6393 
 

 
Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 
 

Page 74



!
"
"
#
$
%
&
'
(
!

P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 September 2012
	4 Accounts of Lancashire County Developments Limited 2011/12
	Appendix

	5 Update on treasury management activity
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	6 Internal Audit Service Progress Report
	Appendix  A
	Appendix B

	7 External Audit - Annual Audit Letter 2011/12
	2011-12 Lancashire CC  Annual Audit letter

	8 County Council and Pension Fund External Audit Fees 2012-13
	Appendix


